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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
 
Notice is hereby given that the 39th Annual General Meeting of the Members of RADICO KHAITAN 
FINANCE LIMITED will be held on Tuesday, 30th Day of September, 2025 at 02.00 P.M. at PT. Gyani Ram 
Farm House C/o Mr. Bijender Sharma, Advocate, Near Canara Bank, Main Road Asola, Fatehpur Beri, New 
Delhi- 110074 to transact the following businesses:  
 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Standalone Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 
financial year ended on March 31st, 2025, together with the Boards’ Report and the Report of Auditors’ 
thereon. 

 
2. To receive, consider and adopt the Consolidated Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended on March 31st, 2025, 
 

3. To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Karuna Devi Khaitan (DIN: 00755814), who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
 

4. To Appoint Ms. RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant as Statutory Auditor of the Company.    
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution, with or without 
modification:  

 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 139 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014  Ms. RAK Champs & Co. 
LLP, Chartered Accountant  ( FRN-131094W/W100083 ) be and are hereby appointed as statutory 
auditors of the Company to hold office from the conclusion of this 39th annual general meeting till the 
conclusion of its 40th Annual General Meeting, at a remuneration to be determined by the Board of 
Directors of the Company in addition to out of pocket expenses as may be incurred by them during the 
course of the Audit.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company or any committee thereof be 
and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds and things as in its absolute discretion it may think 
necessary, expedient or desirable; to settle any question or doubt that may arise in relation thereto in 
order to give effect to this resolution.” 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 
 

5. Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Modi (Din No. 08185190) as Independent Director  

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 , 152 read with schedule IV, The Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force)  

 

and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), Consent of members be and is hereby accorded, to re-appoint Mr. Arvind Modi ( Din 
No. 08185190) as Director (Non-Executive & Independent) on the Board of the Company for period of Five 
consecutive years from the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.”    

6. Re-appointment of Mr. Khaderan Singh (Din No. 07900796) as Independent Director  
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 150 , 152 read with schedule IV , The Companies 
(Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, other applicable provisions, sections, rules of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) 
and pursuant to applicable provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 (‘Listing Regulations’), Consent of members be and is hereby accorded, to re-appoint Mr. Khaderan Singh     
(Din No. 07900796) as Director (Non-Executive & Independent) on the Board of the Company for period of two 
consecutive years from the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting.”    

7.  Appointment of M/S. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors for 
the Company  
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary 
Resolution: 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Sections 204 and 179(3) and other applicable provisions of The 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 9 of The Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Regulation 24A of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 read with SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 
2024 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for time being in force) and circulars 
issued thereunder from time to time, and based on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board 
of Directors, M/s. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Delhi (Peer review certificate: 
2716/2022) be and are hereby appointed as the Secretarial Auditors for the Company, to hold office for one 
term of five consecutive years commencing from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, at such 
remuneration as may be approved by the Audit Committee and/or Board of Directors of the Company from time 
to time, in addition to applicable taxes and re-imbursement of out-of-pocket & travelling expenses, at actuals, 
incurred by them in connection with the audit.” 

“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby authorized to 
revise/alter/modify/amend the terms and conditions and/or remuneration, from time to time, as may be 
mutually agreed with the Statutory Auditors, during the tenure of their appointment.” 
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including its Committee thereof) or Key 
Managerial Personnel of the Company, be and are hereby jointly and /or severally authorized on behalf of the 
Company to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, desirable and expedient for the 
purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 

 
                                                                                                                                                        
                                                                                                                                                       By Order of the Board  
                                                     For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd  
 
  
 
                                                                                                                                                        Krishan Kumar Sharma  
                                                                                                                                                                 Director  
Place: New Delhi                        (DIN : 00856406)  
Date: 04/09/2025 
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NOTES:  
 
1. An Explanatory statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 is attached herewith  
 
2. Member entitled to attend and vote at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING, is ENTITLED TO APPOINT A 
PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/ HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013, a person 
can act as a proxy on behalf of member not exceeding fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than ten 
percent of the total Share Capital of the Company. Members holding more than ten percent of the total Share 
Capital of the Company may appoint a single person as proxy, who shall not act as a proxy for any other 
Member The instrument appointing Proxy as per the format included in the Annual Report should be 
deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly completed and sign not less than FORTY-EIGHT 
HOURS before the commencement of the meeting.  
 
3. Corporate members intending to send their authorized representatives to attend the Meeting are requested 
to send to the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to attend and 
vote on their behalf at the Meeting.  
 
4. During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the   meeting and 
ending with the conclusion of the meeting, a member would be entitled to inspect the proxies lodged at any 
time during the business hours of the Company, provided that not less than three days of notice in writing is 
given to the Company.  
 
5.  The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 24th day of 
September, 2025 to 30th day of September, 2025 (both days inclusive).  
  
6. Documents referred to in the accompanying Notice and the statement and other statutory registers are 
available for inspection by members at the Registered Office of the Company during office hours on all 
working days except Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of 
Annual General Meeting.  
 
7. Members / proxies are requested to bring their attendance slip along with their copy of Annual Report to 
the meeting. As a measure of economy, copies of the Annual Report will not be distributed at the meeting. 
Members, who hold shares in dematerialized form, are requested to bring their Client ID and DP ID numbers 
for easy identification of attendance at the meeting.  
 
8. Members holding shares in electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change in heir 
address or bank mandates to their Depository Participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address or bank 
mandates immediately to the RTA.  
 
9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) has mandated the submission of PAN by every 
participant in the securities market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore, requested to 
submit their PAN to their Depository Participants. Members holding shares in physical form are required to 
submit their PAN details to the company. / Proxies are requested to bring their attendance slip along with 
their copy of Annual Report to the meeting. 
 
10. Annual Report 2024-2025 are being sent by electronic mode only to all the members whose email addresses 
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are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s) for communication purposes unless any member 
has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have not registered their email addresses, 
physical copies of the Annual Report 2025 are being sent by the permitted mode on their request.  
 
11. The Notice of the 39th AGM and instructions for e-voting, along with the Attendance Slip and Proxy Form, 
is being sent by electronic mode to all members whose email addresses are registered with the Company / 
Depository Participant(s) unless a member has requested for a hard copy of the same. For members who have 
not registered their email addresses, physical copies of the aforesaid documents are being sent by the 
permitted mode on their request.  
 
12. Members are requested to send their queries, if any, relating to the accounts of the Company, well in 
advance, so that the necessary information can be made available at the meeting.  
 
13. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register their e- mail 
address for receiving all communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars, etc. from the Company 
electronically.  
 
VOTING THROUGH ELECTRONIC MEANS (Instructions for e-voting)  
 
14. In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 (1) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members facility to exercise their right to 
vote on resolutions proposed to be considered at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) by electronic means and 
the business may be transacted through e-Voting Services. The facility of casting the votes by the members 
using an electronic voting system from a place other than venue of the AGM ("remote e-voting") will be 
provided by National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).  
 
The facility for voting through ballot paper shall be made available at the AGM and the members attending the 
meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise their right at the meeting 
through ballot paper. 
 
The members who have cast their vote by remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also attend the AGM but 
shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.  
 
The remote e-voting period commences on 27th September, 2025 (9:00 am) and ends on 29th September, 2025 
(5:00 pm). During this period members' of the Company, holding shares either in physical form or in 
dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2025, may cast their vote by remote e-voting. The 
remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the vote on a resolution is cast 
by the member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently.  
 
Process and manner for Remote e-voting are as under 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode 
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In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in 
their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of 
NSDL Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page 
click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” 
which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 
prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 
After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-
Voting services under Value added services. Click on 
“Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you 
will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you 
will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for 
casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period If 
you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 
register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 
“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-
Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 
which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 
A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User 
ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 
with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 
shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you 
will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you 
can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 
redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 
vote during the remote e-Voting period.  

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile 
App “NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code 
mentioned below for seamless voting experience. 
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Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, 
can login through their existing user id and password. 
Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page 
without any further authentication. The users to login Easi 
/Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 
www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New 
System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing my easi 
username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be 
able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies 
where the evoting is in progress as per the information 
provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the 
user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting 
service provider for casting your vote during the remote 
e-Voting period. Additionally, there is also links provided 
to access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers, so 
that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to 
register is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com 
and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then 
click on registration option. 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page 
by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from 
a e-Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home 
page. The system will authenticate the user by sending 
OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the 
Demat Account. After successful authentication, user will 
be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in 
progress and also able to directly access the system of all 
e-Voting Service Providers. 
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Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your 
demat account through your Depository Participant 
registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. upon 
logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 
on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to 
NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. 
Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 
NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to 
login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can 

contact NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can 
contact CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll 
free no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices 
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast 
your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
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Manner of holding shares i.e. 
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or 
Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 
Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is 
IN300*** and Client ID is 12****** 
then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 
demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID 
is 12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 
Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 
Number registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** 
and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 
101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

and cast your vote. 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL 
from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. 
The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of 
client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file 
contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for those 
shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
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6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 
with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 
available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 
evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 
 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 
check box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares 
and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which 
you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 
Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly 
authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to ajaics06@gmail.com with a 
copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also 
upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution 
/ Authority Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your 
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the 
correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical 
User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user 
manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or 
send a request to Mr. Pritam Dutta, Assistant Manager at pritamd@nsdl.com / evoting@nsdl.com  
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Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id 
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

a. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy  
of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested 
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to admin@radicoindia.com  

b. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to admin@radicoindia.com. If you are an Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 
(A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

c. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id and password for 
e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

d. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 
 

15. You can also update your mobile number and e-mail id in the user profile details of the folio which may 
be used for sending future communication(s).  

 
16. The voting rights of members shall be in proportion to their shares of the paid up equity share capital of 
the Company as on the cut-off date of 23rd September, 2025. 

 
17. Any person, who acquires shares of the Company and become member of the Company after dispatch of 
the notice and holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 23rd September, 2025, may obtain the login ID and 
password by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in.  

 
However, if you are already registered with NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use your existing user 
ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot your password, you can reset your password by using 
"Forgot User Details/Password" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or contact NSDL at the 
following toll free no.: 1800-222-990.  

 
18. A member may participate in the AGM even after exercising his right to vote through remote e- voting   

but shall not be allowed to vote again at the AGM.  
 
19. A person, whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register of beneficial owners 
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date only shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-
voting as well as voting at the AGM through ballot paper.  

 
20. CS Ajai Kumar, Prop. of Ajai Kumar & Associates - Practicing Company Secretaries (Membership No. 

21637 ) has been appointed for as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company 
to scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner.  

 
21.  The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end of discussion on the resolutions on which voting is to be 

held, allow voting with the assistance of scrutinizer, by use of "Ballot Paper" for all those members who 
are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing the remote e- voting facility.  

 
22. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the general meeting, will first count the votes cast  
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at the meeting and thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting in the presence of at least 
two witnesses not in the employment of the Company and shall make, not later than three days of the 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated scrutinizer's report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if 
any, to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing, who shall countersign the same and 
declare the result of the voting forthwith.  

 
23. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of NSDL 

immediately after the declaration of result by the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing. 
The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the Stock Exchanges.  

            
                                                                                                                                                             By Order of the Board  
                  For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                        Krishan Kumar Sharma  
                                                                                                                                                                                   Director  
Place: New Delhi                       (DIN: 00856406)  
Date: 04/09/2025 
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ANNEXURE TO NOTICE 

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT U/S 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 

As required by Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory statements sets out all 
material facts relating to the businesses mentioned under Items No. 5 to 7 of the accompanying notice: 

ITEM NO. 5 

Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Modi (Din No. 08185190) as Independent Director  
  

The Company wants to re-appoint Mr. Khaderan Singh as Director of the Company, under the category of 
Independent Director with effect from ensuing Annual General Meeting. Further, Mr. Khaderan Singh has 
confirmed that he is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and he is not debarred 
from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority and he is in compliance 
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Given his expertise, 
knowledge and experience, the Board is of the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to avail his 
services as an Independent Director of the Company and his continuation on the Board of the Company as an 
Independent Director will be in the interest of the Company and he has given his consent to act as a Director of the 
Company. Hence requires the approval of members by way of a special resolution. 

ITEM NO. 6 

Re-appointment of Mr. Khaderan Singh (Din No. 07900796) as Independent Director  

The Company wants to re-appoint Mr. Khaderan Singh as Director of the Company, under the category of 
Independent Director with effect from ensuing Annual General Meeting. Further, Mr. Khaderan Singh has 
confirmed that he is not disqualified to act as a Director in terms of Section 164 of the Act and he is not debarred 
from holding the office of Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other such authority and he is in compliance 
with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. Given his expertise, 
knowledge and experience, the Board is of the opinion that it would be in the interest of the Company to avail his 
services as an Independent Director of the Company and his continuation on the Board of the Company as an 
Independent Director will be in the interest of the Company and he has given his consent to act as a Director of the 
Company. Hence requires the approval of members by way of a special resolution. 

ITEM NO. 7 

Appointment of M/S. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors for 
the Company  

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 24A of The Listing Regulations read with SEBI circular no. 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024 and other prevailing circulars and based on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th May, 2025 
approved the appointment of M/s. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Delhi (Peer review 
certificate: 2716/2022) as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company, to hold office for a term of five years i.e. 
financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30. The appointment is subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at 
the Annual General Meeting. 
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Information pursuant to Regulation 36(5) of The SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015: 
 
Proposed Fee: 
The fee proposed to Secretarial Auditors shall be decided by the Board for secretarial audit of the Company for the 
financial year 2025-26 to 2029-30.  
 
The Board of Directors and the Audit Committee shall approve revisions to the remuneration of the Secretarial 
Auditors, for the balance part of the tenure based on review and any additional efforts on account of changes in 
regulations, restructuring or other considerations. 
 
The proposed fee is based on knowledge, expertise and industry experience possessed by them. The proposed fee 
is also in line with the industry benchmarks. The fees for any other professional work including statutory 
certifications and other permissible non-audit services will be in addition to the audit fee as mentioned above and 
will be decided by the management in consultation with the Auditors. 
 
Besides the secretarial audit services, the Company may also obtain certificates from the secretarial auditor under 
various statutory regulations and certifications required by banks, statutory authorities, audit related services and 
other permissible non-secretarial audit services as required from time to time, which they will be remunerated 
separately on mutually agreed terms, as approved by the Board of Directors in consultation with the Audit 
Committee. 
 
Credentials: Brief profile of secretarial auditor 
 
CS Ajai Kumar, proprietor of M/s Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Delhi  (ACS: 21637, CP: 
8140) has over 17 years of post-qualification experience in the field of Secretarial and Legal matter of various 
companies. Exposure in Handling Public, Rights issues, Conducting AGMs, EGMs, Board Meeting, Secretarial 
Audits, and Financial Audits, well versed with Statutory Compliance under SEBI Regulations, Stock Exchange Listing 
Agreements, FEMA, RBI, ESI, PF, Company Law and related acts and also includes compliances under the 
provisions of The Companies Act, 2013 & other Statutory laws applicable to the companies, Formation of 
Companies, e-filings of various Forms with ROC, maintenance of statutory records, registers under The Companies 
Act, 2013, advises/opinions, drafting agreements/MOU’s, mergers, acquisitions, compliances and Certifications 
required by various regulatory bodies for listed & unlisted Companies, viz Stock Exchange listing agreements, SEBI 
Guidelines, Corporate Governance reports, RBI, Banks & Financial Institutions, Secretarial Audit report, Secretarial 
due diligence report to the banks and others, liaison with ROC, RBI, Banks, Advocates for any legal matters of the 
companies. 

Rationale for recommendation: 

In accordance with Regulation 24A(1A) of The Listing Regulations, the company obtained confirmation on the 
eligibility criteria and that they are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditor in terms of the SEBI 
circular dated December 31, 2024. The services to be rendered by M/s. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing 
Company Secretaries, Delhi as Secretarial Auditors is within the purview of the said regulation read with SEBI 
circular no. SEBI/ HO/CFD/CFD-PoD-2/CIR/P/2024/185 dated December 31, 2024. 

The firm has agreed to the said appointment, and confirmed that their appointment, if made, would be within the 
limits specified under the Act. The Firm has also provided confirmation that it has subjected itself to the peer 
review process of The Institute of Company Secretaries of India (ICSI) and also holds a valid certificate issued by 
the ‘Peer Review Board’ of the ICSI. 
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The Board recommends the resolution as set out in the Item No. 7 of accompanying notice for the approval of 
members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution.  
 
None of the Director, Key Managerial Personnel, or their respective relatives are, in any way, concerned or 
interested, financially or otherwise, in the said resolution. 

 
                                                                                                                                             By Order of the Board  
                  For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                        Krishan Kumar Sharma  
                                                                                                                                                                 Director  
Place: New Delhi                       (DIN: 00856406)  
Date: 04/09/2025 
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Chairman’s Statement 

Dear Shareholders 

The Indian economy remains on track to regain its position as the world's fastest-growing major economy. 
There was significant improvement in collection efficiency and asset quality, which led to lower 
provisioning for NPAs, while some NBFCs even wrote back provisioning, showing a K- shaped recovery. 

Growth in Challenging Times 
 

India’s financial services sector is undergoing significant change, driven by regulatory reforms, rapid 
technological adoption, and a more sophisticated investor base. In this evolving landscape, financial 
institutions must become more diversified, efficient, and client-focused. Lending and investment models 
are rapidly expanding to integrate credit, wealth management, and advisory solutions. At the same time, 
industry consolidation is becoming essential to meet scale requirements, strengthen governance, and 
ensure capital adequacy. Radico Khaitan finance Ltd. also stepped up its ante, during these challenging 
times by swiftly evolving a two-pronged approach which focused on: (i) conservation and prudence; and (ii) 
initiation of an ambitious business transformation plan. 

 To ensure conservatism in new loan bookings, we analysed and calibrated the risk profiles of each 
business segments. 

 As the subsequent waves started to abate, we accelerated business divisions rapidly by focusing 
on customers less susceptible to the economic consequences of the pandemic. 

 We focused more on investment in securities due to buoyant capital markets; offered secured loan 
against securities; decided to make prudent investments mainly in special cases involving open 
offer, buy-back, acquisition, Initial Public Offerings (IPOs), etc. 

 With growing competition, we are focusing our energies on what matters the most to the 
customers, employees and investors with a robust business model that can be value-accretive over 
the long-term. 

Outlook 
The NBFCs sector showed a lot of resilience in FY25 and are expected to witness continued growth 
momentum in the upcoming quarters of FY26. However, the gross NPAs of NBFCs are likely to rise 
following the RBI's move to tighten the NPA norms with a limited impact for shorter-tenure loans due to 
revised NPA norms. We expect the NBFCs to report higher growth and profitability on the back of 
improved margin. 

Conclusion 
With a firm belief on our robust business structure, prudent focus and potential of the NBFC segment and 
its ability to reach out to the underserved sections of the society and utilize every downturn as an 
opportunity, I take this opportunity to acknowledge and thank our employees for their dedication, 
commitment and contribution, which have enabled us to achieve the results. I also thank our customers, 
vendors, bankers, central and state governments and all other stakeholders for their undeterred 
confidence, trust and support. I thank all our colleagues for their continuous guidance during the year. 

 
Regards, 

 
Krishan Kumar Sharma  
Chairman 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

 
Overview 

 
The Company is registered with the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as a non-deposit accepting NBFC. As 
per RBI’s ‘Scale Based Regulations’ (SBR), the Company shall be classified as NBFC- Base Layer 
(NBFC-BL) as the Company has no public deposits. The Company is listed with Metropolitan Stock 
Exchange Ltd ( MSEI ). The Company is principally into lending and investing in Shares and 
Securities. 

 
Indian Economy 

India continues to consolidate its position as a major global economic powerhouse. Retaining its rank 
as the fifth-largest economy, it remains the fastest- growing among large economies and is projected 
to become the third-largest economy by 2027, surpassing a GDP milestone of US$5 trillion, trailing 
only the USA and China. For CY2025, India’s growth is forecast to remain robust at 6.2%, supported 
by resilient domestic demand. India’s export performance has shown impressive momentum over 
the past decade. In FY 2025, total exports reached ₹ 69.1 trillion (US$825 billion), marking a 6% 
increase compared to ₹ 65.2 trillion (US$778 billion) in FY 2024. Over this period, India’s share in 
global merchandise trade improved from 1.66% to 1.81%, elevating its global ranking from 20th to 
17th position. India’s foreign exchange reserves experienced notable fluctuations in FY 2024-25. 
Reserves peaked at an all-time high of US$704 billion in September 2024, before easing by 6.5% to 
US$659 billion by March 2025, partly due to the Reserve Bank of India’s interventions aimed at 
curbing excessive volatility in the Indian Rupee. The country’s digitalisation journey has been 
transformative, reshaping economic activity at an unprecedented pace. By 2030, the digital economy 
is projected to account for one-fifth of India’s GDP, outpacing the growth of traditional sectors. 
According to the State of India’s Digital Economy Report 2024, India now ranks as the third-most 
digitalised economy globally and 12th among G20 nations in terms of digital adoption by individual 
users. The Union Budget 2025–26 has been crafted to sustain growth while maintaining fiscal 
prudence. With measures to simplify regulations, support MSMEs, enhance exports, and attract 
investments, the budget lays down a clear roadmap towards Viksit Bharat 2047. Its emphasis on 
tourism, healthcare, and manufacturing is expected to generate employment opportunities. 
Furthermore, a targeted fiscal deficit of 4.4% for FY 2026 underscores the government’s commitment 
to fiscal consolidation, debt sustainability, and macroeconomic stability, encouraging greater private 
sector participation. 

Indian Economy Outlook 

India is expected to remain relatively shielded from global headwinds, maintaining its strong growth 
trajectory. The country’s long-term structural growth drivers remain intact, supported by favourable 
demographics, stable governance, and ongoing infrastructure development. As per the IMF’s World 
Economic Outlook Report, India will continue to lead as the fastest-growing major economy, with 
growth underpinned by an expanding services sector, a strengthening manufacturing base, and 
supportive government policies aimed at improving infrastructure and rationalising tax regimes. 
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Capital Markets - Industry Overview 

India continues to hold its place as the fourth-largest equity market globally, with a market 
capitalisation exceeding US$4.0 trillion. 

Market Performance in FY 2024-25 

The Indian equity market closed FY 2025 with modest gains, despite notable foreign portfolio 
investor (FPI) outflows in the latter half of the year. The Nifty index delivered positive returns, 
outperforming certain Asian benchmarks such as Nikkei 225 and the Korea Composite Stock Price 
Index, while the Hang Seng Index topped regional charts with a remarkable 39.8% return. Midcap 
and smallcap indices on the NSE and BSE had a strong finish to the year, fuelled by market recovery, 
heightened retail participation, and attractive valuations. The Nifty Midcap150 and Nifty500 rose 
7.6% and 5.4%, respectively, while the BSE Smallcap index gained 8% and the midcap index 
advanced 5.6%. By comparison, the Sensex posted a 5.1% increase during the same period. Despite 
earlier concerns over valuations and market volatility, renewed optimism in the broader markets 
helped sustain momentum in these segments. 

Global Economy 

The global economy demonstrated resilience through 2024 (Calendar Year 2024), recording an 
expansion of 3.2%, according to the IMF World Economic Outlook (April 2025). However, escalating 
trade frictions and increasing policy unpredictability are expected to weigh heavily on global growth 
momentum. For CY2025, the world economy is projected to moderate to 2.8%, followed by 3% in 
CY2026, which remains well below the historical average of 3.7% (2000–2019) due to ongoing 
structural challenges. While robust real income gains and easing interest rates supported economic 
activity, weaker public expenditure, subdued consumer sentiment, and fluctuating external demand 
constrained growth in certain geographies. Within advanced economies, the United States is expected 
to slow to 1.8% in CY2025, impacted by rising policy uncertainty, softening demand, and trade- 
related tensions. The euro area is projected to expand 0.8% in 2025, with an improvement to 1.4% in 
2026 as financial conditions ease. Other advanced economies are anticipated to maintain steady 
growth, with income recovery counterbalanced by trade headwinds. 

In emerging markets and developing nations, economic growth is likely to ease to 3.7% in 2025, 
reflecting the effects of recent trade restrictions. China’s growth outlook has been revised down to 4% 
in 2025, amid lingering tariff impacts and prolonged trade-policy uncertainty. In contrast, India is 
expected to maintain stability, with growth forecast at 6.2% for 2025 and 6.3% for 2026, aided by 
sustained private consumption, particularly in rural areas. Global trade volumes rose by US$1.2 
trillion in 2024, reaching US$33 trillion, supported by 9% growth in services trade and 2% in goods 
trade. Notably, trade in developing economies grew faster than in advanced economies, with China 
and India outperforming, while several developed nations experienced contractions. However, with 
the Trump 2.0 administration introducing new tariffs, and the likelihood of reciprocal actions from 
major trade partners, the global economy faces a phase of elevated trade tensions. Despite this, 
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India’s trade outlook remains resilient, backed by a strong services base, proactive domestic reforms, 
and strategic export diversification into high-value segments such as electronics and 
pharmaceuticals. Looking ahead, global growth is expected to moderate further to 2.8% in CY2025, 
shaped by new bilateral tariff regimes and rising geopolitical and policy uncertainties. 

India’s NBFC Sector 

India, as one of the world’s fastest-growing major economies, continues to provide a favourable 
environment for the expansion of its credit markets. The total NBFC credit outstanding stood at 
approximately₹ 52 trillion as of December 2024 and is projected to cross ₹ 60 trillion by FY 2025-26, 
underscoring the sector’s sustained growth trajectory. Within the overall lending landscape 
comprising banks, NBFCs, and All-India Financial Institutions, NBFCs have consistently maintained 
a 21–24% share of total credit from FY 2016-17 to FY 2023-24, highlighting their critical role in India’s 
financial ecosystem. As the country works towards becoming a US$5 trillion economy, the demand 
for credit will continue to rise, further cementing the importance of NBFCs in driving economic 
growth and enabling access to finance. Retail loans remain the cornerstone of NBFC growth, 
accounting for 58% of total NBFC credit as of December 2024. Within this segment, unsecured 
business loans formed 28% of retail NBFC credit, reflecting rising demand for small-ticket, short- 
tenure financing. However, the Reserve Bank of India, concerned about the rapid expansion in 
unsecured personal loans and credit card portfolios, raised risk weights on unsecured retail loans by 
25 bps to 125%, prompting tighter risk management practices. In FY 2024-25, certain asset segments, 
including microfinance, personal loans, credit cards, and unsecured business loans, faced higher 
stress, resulting in elevated delinquencies and write-offs. Despite these challenges, NBFCs have 
strengthened their balance sheets over the years, with reduced leverage, improved asset quality, and 
a strategic shift towards the retail segment. 

The sector is also leveraging digital data and technology to enhance credit assessment and improve 
operational efficiency. Investor confidence remains strong, supported by sustained equity interest 
and an untapped pool of overseas debt capital offering additional growth avenues. With this stable 
foundation and adaptive capabilities, NBFCs are well-positioned to navigate an evolving regulatory 
environment while maintaining growth momentum and supporting India’s broader economic 
development. 

Opportunities and threats 
 

The RBI has been continually strengthening the supervisory framework for NBFCs in order to ensure 
sound and healthy functioning and avoid excessive risk taking. It has issued several new guidelines 
in the recent past. The uncertainties and volatility in the financial market are a continuing threat to 
the organizational performance. However, the twin features of foresightedness and focused analysis 
of the market have challenged the threat of adverse performance 
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Financial condition 

 
Refer to the Standalone and Consolidated financial statements in this Annual Report for 
detailed schedules and notes. 

 
• No movement in equity shares during the year. 

 
• 20% of the net profit is transferred to the Special Reserve Account created pursuant to Section 
45 IC of RBI. 

 
• Non–financial liabilities include deferred tax liability created on investment in equity 
instruments measured at fair values through other comprehensive income. 

 
• Financial assets includes Loans and Advances and Investments in equity shares of quoted and 
unquoted companies. 

 
• Non-financial assets include current tax assets and other assets. 

 
Results of operations 

 
The Company has earned a net profit of Rs. 434.19 lakhs during the financial year 2024-2025. 
The Company has generated major income this year from Interest on Loan and Sale of Shares 
and Securities, dividends received on equity instruments and other interest income. 

 
Outlook, risks and concerns 

Your Company is exposed to normal industry risk such as interest rates, market and 
operational risks. In order to mitigate the risk, your Company invest the surplus funds in 
growth schemes primarily seeking to generate long term capital appreciation commensurate 
with prudent risk from a portfolio comprised substantially of high quality securities and large 
cap companies. 

 
Internal Financial Control System and their adequacy 

 
The Company believes in the system of internal controls and has provided for proper 
checks and control at various operational levels. 

 
Material developments in human resources/ industrial relations, including number of people 
employed 

 
There has been positive working relationship between the Company and the employees of 
the Company during the year. The Company strives to provide conducive working 
environment to its employees and to maintain the pace with the economic situations, 
Company has always focused on enhancing the efficiency of the employees including 
restructuring their compensation, working conditions e.t.c. Accordingly, the Company has 
also provided work from home facility to its employees and evaluated the performance of 
employees during the year under review to retain the motivation among the employees of 
the Company. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
This statement made in this section describes the company’s objectives, projections, expectation and 
estimations, which may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of applicable securities 
laws and regulations. Forward– looking statements are based on certain assumptions and 
expectations of future events. The company cannot guarantee that these assumptions and 
expectations are accurate or will be realised by the company. Actual result could differ materially 
from those expressed in the statement or implied due to influence of external factors, which are 
beyond the control of the company. The company assumes no responsibility to publicly amend, 
modify or revise any forward-looking statements on the basis of any subsequent developments. 

 
 
 
 
        For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd   
 
 

Place: New Delhi Krishan Kumar Sharma  
Date : 06 th Day of June, 2025 Director  
 Din no. 00856406 
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To The Members Of,  
Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd  

 
Your Director have pleasure in presenting the 39th Annual Report of the Company together with Audited 
Statements of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

STANDALONE & CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENT: 
(Rs in Lacs) 

Particulars STANDALONE CONSOLIDATED 

 For the Year 
Ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year 
Ended March 
31, 2024 

For the Year 
Ended March 
31, 2025 

For the Year 
Ended March 
31, 2024 

Gross Total Income  2881.77 5447.54 2881.77 5447.54 
Total Expenses 2327.90 5385.83 2327.90 5385.83 
Exceptional Item -- -- -- -- 
Profit/(Loss) Before Tax 553.87 61.71 553.87 61.71 
Provision for Taxation 135.23 2.94 135.23 2.94 
Deferred Tax Asset/(Liability) 15.56 18.09 15.56 18.09 
Income Tax For Earlier Year -- -- -- -- 
Profit/(Loss) After Tax 434.20 76.86 434.20 76.86 
Add: Share of Profit in Associates -- -- -11.71 20.93 
Profit/(Loss) For the Period 434.20 76.86 422.49 97.80 
Other Comprehensive Income 79.23 ---- 79.23 ----- 
Total Comprehensive Income for the 
Period 

513.43 76.86 501.72 97.80 

 
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS: 

There has been no change in nature of business of the company during the F.Y. 2024-2025. 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS: 

There has been no material changes and commitments, affecting the Financial Position of the Company, 
which have occurred between the End of Financial Year of the Company to which the Financial Statements 
relate and the date of the report. 
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DIVIDEND: 

Funds required for expansion of business under review The Board has decided not to recommend any 
dividend for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

TRANSFER TO RESERVE: 

The Company has transferred Rs. 86.84 lacs  to statutory reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act 1934 in the 
financial year 2024-2025. 

CHANGES IN SHARE CAPITAL: 

The paid up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March, 2025 stood at Rs. 900.00 Lakhs. During the year under 
review, the Company has not issued any shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares nor 
granted any stock options. The company neither came out with rights, bonus, private placement and 
preferential issue. 

OPERATIONS & FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

The Company will look to extend to adjacent business spaces without compromising the integrity of the loan 
book. We believe that the market for this is large and relatively underpenetrated. 

Given the potential in the business, we believe that we should be able to more than double revenues during 
the current financial year and double that again in 2026-27. The next two years are expected to generate 
sizeable growth, enhancing value for our customers while improving our visibility and profitability. 

According to RBI one of the main reasons for tighter regulation is to reduce the systematic risk they pose to 
the financial system since they borrow heavily from banks. Prima facie it may appear that these reforms will 
affect the productivity of the NBFCs; however, with time they are more likely to improve NBFCs capacity to 
endure asset quality shocks and also deal with systemic risks. Moreover, increase in disclosure requirements 
and corporate governance norms will have a three-fold effect. It will enhance transparency and increase the 
responsibility of the management and further supplement investor awareness. 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY: 

The Company has policy for Internal Financial Control System, commensurate with the size, scale and 
complexity of its operations. Detailed procedural manuals are in place to ensure that all the assets are 
safeguarded, protected against loss and all transactions are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The 
scope and authority of the Internal Audit (IA) function is defined in the internal financial control policy. The 
Internal Auditor monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of Internal Financial control system in 
the Company, its compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies. To maintain its 
objectivity and independence, the Internal Auditor reports to the Chairman of the Audit Committee of the 
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Board, the internal audit report on quarterly basis and some are reviewed by the committee. The observation 
and comments of the Audit Committee are placed before the board. 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSON: 
 
The total strength of the board is six at present Shri. Kamesh Kumar Khaitan Managing Director, Smt. Karuna Khaitan  
(Woman Director), Krishan Kumar Sharma – Director, Arvind Modi– Independent Director, Khaderan Singh – Independent 
Director, Mrs. Shalini Dua – Company Secretary. Mr. Raman Thakur during the year.  

Appointment and Resignation: 
 
During the financial year 2024-25 the Board of Director of the Company was duly constituted. The Re-
Appointment of Mr.  Khaderan Singh (Din No. 07900796) Independent Director and Arvind Modi (Din No. 
08185190) as an Independent Director of the Company has been proposed for approval of shareholders at 
ensuing Annual General Meeting. Further Mr. Raman Thakur has been appointed as CFO by the Board w.e.f. 
13th day of June, 2024. 
A brief resume of the Directors proposed to be re-appointed along with additional information is 
provided in the notice of Annual General Meeting. 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
The Company has received the necessary declaration from each ID in accordance with Section 149(7) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, that he/she meets the criteria of independence as laid out in sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015.  

MEETINGS OF THE BOARD: 

The company has duly complied with section 173 of the Companies’ Act 2013. During the year 
under review, 6 (Six) board meetings were convened and held. The date on which meeting were 
held are as follows : 30.05.2024, 13.08.2024, 05.09.2024, 14.11.2024, 22.11.2024, 14.02.2025. 
The maximum interval between any two meetings did not exceed 120 days. 

FORMAL ANNUAL EVALUATION& INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS MEETING: 

During the year, the Board has carried out the annual evaluation of its own performance as well as 
the evaluation of the working of its Committees and individual Directors. This exercise was carried 
out through a structured questionnaire prepared separately for Board, Committee and individual 
Directors on the basis of the various parameters. 

Separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of Whole Time Director on basis of 
the parameters such as contribution, independent judgment, effective leadership to the Board, 
safeguarding of minority shareholders interest etc. Based on set parameters, the performance of the 
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Board, various Board Committees vi z. Audi t Committee, Stakeholder s ’Relationship Committee, 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Independent Directors was carried out and 
evaluated to be satisfactory. 
During the year under review, the Independent Directors of your Company carried out the 
performance evaluation of Non- Independent Directors and Chairperson at a separate meeting of 
Independent Director held on 05.09.2024. The Directors were satisfied with the Evaluation Results, 

MANAGERIAL REMUNERATION: 

The statement containing the disclosure as required in accordance with the provisions of Section 
197(12) of the Companies Act 2013 read with rule 5 (1) of the Companies (Appointment and 
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is annexed as Annual return. and forms a part 
of the Board Report. Further, none of the employees of the Company are in receipt of remuneration 
exceeding the limit prescribed under rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 
of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 so statement pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Companies Act 
2013 read with rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial 
Personnel) Rules, 2014 is not required to be included. 

DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY / JOINT VENTURES / ASSOCIATE COMPANIES: 

Your Company has no Subsidiary Company. Details of Associate Companies during the year under 
review is annexed as Annexure II (i.e. in Form AOC – I) and forms part of the Board Report. 

AUDITORS & AUDITORS REPORT: 
STATUTORY AUDITOR: 
The Board of Director recommended the reappointment of Ms. RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant (FRN-
131094W/W100083), as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for a period of 2025-26 i.e. from the conclusion of this 
39th Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of 40th Annual General Meeting of the Company, at such remuneration 
as may be fixed by the Board of Directors of the Company.” 

Pursuant to Section 141 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014, Ms. RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant (FRN-131094W/W100083), have represented 
that they are not disqualified and continue to be eligible to act as the Auditor of the Company. Ms. 

RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant (FRN-131094W/W100083), have also confirmed that they have 
been subjected to the peer review process of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) 
and holds a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI as required under Regulation 
33(1)(d) of the Listing Regulations. 
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SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:  
Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 inter-alia requires every listed company to annex with its 
Board Report, a Secretarial Audit Report given by a Company Secretary in practice. The Secretarial 
Audit Report is annexed with this board report. Further comments given by Secretarial Auditor have 
been taken into consideration and initiative has been taken to remove the qualification.  

INTERNAL AUDITOR:  

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and The Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 the Company M/s. Raushan Prasad & Associates, were appointed to undertake 
the Internal Audit of the Company. There stood no adverse finding & reporting by the Internal 
Auditor in the Internal Audit Report for the year ended 31st March 2025. 

AUDITOR REPORTS There are no qualifications, reservation or adverse remarks made by Ms. RAK 

Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountant (FRN-131094W/W100083) the statutory Auditor, in their report. 

The statutory Auditor have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit committee of the 
company in the year under review. 

COMMITTEES: 

i) AUDIT COMMITTEE: 

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors oversees the Financial Statements and Financial 
Reporting before submission to the Board. The Audit Committee is responsible for the 
recommendation of the appointment, remuneration, performance and oversight of the work of the 
Internal and Statutory Auditors. It reviews the Reports of the Internal Auditors and Statutory 
Auditors. The Senior Management Personnel are invited to the meetings of the Audit Committee, 
along with the Head of Internal Audit. At present, there are three Members of the Audit Committee. 
The composition of the Audit Committee is given below: 

 
S.No. Name of Member Category 
1 Mr. Arvind modi Independent, Non Executive 
2 Mrs Karuna Khaitan Non Executive 
3 Mr. Khaderan singh  Independent, Non - Executive 
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ii) NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE: 

The committee’s constitution and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of section 
178 of Companies Act 2013 read with Regulation 19 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The functions of this Committee include identification of persons 
who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed as Senior Management, 
formulation of criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes, independence, 
recommendations of their appointments to the Board, evaluation of every Director’s performance, 
formulation of Remuneration Policy to include recommendation of remuneration for Directors, Key 

Managerial Personnel and Senior Management. 

At present, there are Three Members of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in which 
Two are Independent Directors. 

The composition of the Nomination And Remuneration Committee is given below: 
 

S.No. Name of Member Category 
1 Mr. Arvind modi  Independent, Non Executive 
2 Mrs Karuna Khaitan Non Executive 
3 Mr. Khaderan Singh  Independent, Non - Executive 

iii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 
 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee is responsible to Consider & Resolve the Grievances of 
Security holders including complaints related to transfer of shares, non receipt of balance sheet, non 
receipt of declared dividends, Transfer & transmission of shares, Issue of duplicate shares, 
Exchange of new design share certificates, Recording dematerialization & rematerialization of 
shares & related matters. 

The composition of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee is given below: 
 

S.No. Name of Member Category 
1 Mr. Arvind modi Independent 
2 Mrs. Karuna Khaitan Non-Independent 
3 Mr. Khaderan Singh Independent 
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VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY: 

Your Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct 
of business operations. To maintain these standards, the Company encourages its employees who 
have concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without 
fear of punishment or unfair treatment. The company has adopted a Whistle Blower policy to 
establish a vigil mechanism for directors and employees to report concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the Codes of conduct or ethics policy. The said 
policy is hosted on the website of the company (www.radicoindia.com) 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY: 

Pursuant to section 134(n) of Companies Act 2013 and revised clause 49 of Listing Agreement, your 
company has a robust Risk management framework to identify, evaluate business risk and 
opportunities. This framework seeks to create transparency, minimize adverse impact on the 
business objectives and enhance the competitive advantage. The framework has different risk 
models which help in identifying risk trends, exposure and potential impact analysis at a company 
level. The said policy is hosted on the website of the company (www.radicoindia.com) 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY: 
The Company had not taken any initiatives on the activities of Corporate Social Responsibilities as 
the provisions relating to the same are not applicable to the Company. 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN: 
Companies Act, 2013 makes mandatory for every company to prepare an extract in the format 
prescribed MGT 9. The details forming art of the extract of Annual Return as on 31st March 2025 is 
annexed herewith as Annexure IV. 

SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURT OR 
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S 
OPERATION IN FUTURE: 
There are no significant material orders passed by the Regulators / Courts/Tribunals which would 
impact the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS UNDER SECTION 186 : 
Your Company being the Non-Banking Financial Company having the principal business of 
providing loans, is exempted from the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 to the 
extent of providing loans, giving guarantee and providing security in connection with loan. 
However, the details of investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 are given in notes to the financial statement. 
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DEPOSITS: 
Your company is non deposit taking NBFC registered with RBI, thus the said clause is not 
applicable and the company does not accept any deposit. The Board of Directors has duly passed a 
resolution in their meeting giving effect to the aforesaid statement. 

 
CONTRACTS/ TRANSACTIONS / ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES: 
All contracts/ arrangements/transactions with related parties entered by the company during the 
financial year were on an arm’s length basis and were in the ordinary course of business and the 
provisions of section 188 of the Companies Act 2013 are not attracted and thus disclosure about 
details of contracts or arrangements or transactions with related parties referred to in section 188(1) 
in Form AOC-2 is not required. During the year, the Company had not entered into any contract / 
arrangement / transaction with related parties which could be considered material in accordance 
with the policy of the Company on materiality of related party transactions. There are no materially 
significant related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel or their relatives or other designated persons which could have a potential 
conflict with the interest of the Company at large. 

 
All Related Party Transactions are periodically placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board 
for approval. During the year under review the company has not taken any omnibus approval from 
Audit committee. A Related Party policy has been devised by the board of Directors for 
determining the materiality of transactions with related parties and dealing with them. Further your 
directors draw your kind attention of the members to Notes to the financial statements which sets 
out related party transactions. 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT: 

As per Regulation 15 (2) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015, Corporate Governance provisions specified in regulations 17, 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27 
and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para C , D and E of Schedule V shall 
not apply, in respect of (a) a listed entity having paid up equity share capital not exceeding rupees ten crore 
and net worth not exceeding rupees twenty five crore, as on the last day of the previous financial year. As 
our company falls under above mentioned exception hence compliance with Regulation 27 of SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is not applicable to us. Therefore Corporate 
Governance Report for the year ended 31.03.2025 is not prepared. 

DISCLOSURES ON POLICY AGAINST SEXUAL AND WORKPLACE HARASSMENT : 
The Company believes that it is the responsibility of the organisation to provide an environment to 
its employee which is free of discrimination, intimidation and abuse and also to protect the integrity 
and dignity of its employees and also to avoid conflicts and disruptions in the work environment. 

Further there stood no cases filed during the year under review. 



 
 

 
 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECRETARIAL STANDARDS OF ICSI 
The Board of Directors affirms that the Company has duly complied with the applicable Secretarial 
standards (SS) relating to Meetings of the Board (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India which have mandatory application during the year under 
review. 

 
DISCLOSURES PERTAINING TO MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS PURSUANT TO  
SECTION 148(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified u/s 148(1) of the Companies Act, 
2013 read with the applicable rules thereon for the FY 2024-2025. Hence the said clause is not 

applicable to the Company with respect to its’ nature of business. 

 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNINGS AND OUTGOES: 
Since the Company does not own any manufacturing facility, the requirements pertaining to 

disclosure of particulars relating to conservation of energy, technology absorption 
FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING/OUTGO 

During the year under review, the Company has entered into the transactions in foreign currency 
  31.03.2025 31.03.2024 

 C.I.F. Value of Imports  Nil NIL 

    
Expenditure in foreign currency   13.01 Lacs   9.99  Lacs 

    
Earning of Foreign currency     1,41 Lacs 1.03 Lacs 

DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE TIME 
OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN 
FROM THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS 
THEREOF 

 
During the financial year under review, the company has not taken from any Bank and further 
there stood no instance of onetime settlement with any Financial Institution. 

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT: 

Your Directors to the best of their knowledge and belief and according to the information and 
explanation obtained by them, make the following statement in terms of clause (c) of sub-section 
(3) of section 134 of Companies Act 2013 that —RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LIMITED Annual 
Report 2024-2025 

a) In the preparation of the annual accounts for the Financial year ended on 31st March 2025, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed along with proper explanation relating to 
material departures. 

b) The directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the company as at 31st March 2025 and of the Profits of the company for that 
period; 

c) The directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2013 for safeguarding the assets of 
the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 
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d) The directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

  

e) The directors had laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the company and that 
such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively. 

f) The directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 
applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively 
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Your Directors take the opportunity to thanks the Regulators, Organizations and Agencies for the 

continued help and co-operation extended by them. The Directors also gratefully acknowledge all 
stakeholders of the Company viz. customers, members, vendors, banks and other business partners 
for the excellent support received from them during the year. The Directors place on record their 
sincere appreciation to all employees of the Company for their unstinted commitment and 
continued contribution to the Company. 

 
On Behalf of the Board of Directors 

                                 For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd   
 
 

Place: New Delhi Krishan Kumar Sharma  
Date : 06 th Day of June, 2025 Director  
 Din no. 00856406 
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Form AOC-1 

(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014) 

 
STATEMENT CONTAINING SALIENT FEATURES OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT OF 

SUBSIDIARIES/ASSOCIATE COMPANIES/JOINT VENTURES 
 
 

Part “A”: Subsidiaries 
 

(Information in respect of each subsidiaries.) 
Sl. No. Particulars Details 

1.  Name of the subsidiary N.A 
2.  Reporting period for the subsidiary concerned, if 

different from the holding company’s reporting period 
 

N.A. 
 

3.  Reporting currency and Exchange rate as on the last date 
of the relevant Financial year in the case of foreign 
subsidiaries 

N.A. 

4.  Share capital  
5.  Reserves & surplus  
6.  Total assets  
7.  Total Liabilities N,A 
8.  Investments  
9.  Turnover  
10.  Profit before taxation  
11.  Provision for taxation  
12.  Profit after taxation  
13.  Proposed Dividend  
14.  % of shareholding  
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Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures 

 
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies. 
 

Name of associates/Joint venture Narah Overseas Pvt  
Ltd 

KK Trade & 
Commercial Pvt Ltd 

1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date 31.03.2025 31.03.2025 
   

2. Shares of Associates held by the company on the year 
end 

  

              No. of Shares 24,699 24,699 
              Amount of Investment in Associates 5,67,000 5,27,000 
              Extend of Holding% 49.4% 49.4% 
   

3. Description of how there is significant influence Associate Associate 

   
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not 

consolidated 
N.A. N.A. 

   
5. Net worth attributable to shareholding as per latest 

audited Balance Sheet 
- 26,53,179 

 
13,40,807 

   
6. Profit/Loss for the year -25,77,028 2,06,041 
i. Considered in Consolidation -12,73,052 1,01,784 
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation   

       
 
                                                                       For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd   

 
 
 
Krishan Kumar Sharma 
Director  

          Din No. 00856406 
Date: 06.06.2025 
Place:  New- Delhi 
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Form No. AOC-2 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014) 

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related 
parties referred to in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s 
length transactions under third proviso thereto. 
During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any related party transaction falling 
under sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
 

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis: NA 
 

Nature of 
Transactio
n 

Nature 
of 
contract
s/arran
gement
s/transa
ctions 

Duration 
of the 
contracts 
/ 
arrangem
ents/tran
sactions 

Salient 
terms of 
the 
contracts or 
arrangemen
ts or 
transactions 
including 
the value, if 
any 

Justification 
for entering 
into such 
contracts or 
arrangement
s or 
transactions 
 

date (s) 
of 
approva
l by the 
Board 

Amoun
t paid 
as 
advanc
es, if 
any: 

Date on 
which the 
special 
resolution 
was passed 
in general 
meeting as 
required 
under first 
proviso to 
section 188 

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:N.A 

Name of related 
party and nature of 
relationship 

Nature of 
contracts/arran
gements/transa
ctions 

Duration of the 
contracts / 
arrangements/
transactions 

Salient terms 
of the 
contracts or 
arrangement
s or 
transactions 
including the 
value, if any 

date (s) of 
approval 
by the 
Board 

Amount 
paid as 
advances, if 
any: 

0 0 0 0 0 0 

 
                     For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd   

 
Krishan Kumar Sharma 
Director  

          Din No. 00856406 
Date: 06.06.2025 
Place:  New- Delhi 



 
 

   AJAI KUMAR & ASSOCIATES 
   Company Secretaries 
   123A, A-5, Paschim Vihar, Delhi -110063.  

                PH. No –011- 49854846, Email Id – akp14122006@gmail.com 
 

FORM NO. MR-3 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2025 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 
 
To 
The Members 
Radico Khaitan Finance Limited  
CIN: L74899DL1984PLC019092 
4A, 4th Floor, Dairy Farms Masoodpur 
New Delhi – 110070. 
 
I have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Radico Khaitan Finance Limited (CIN: 
L74899DL1984PLC019092) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 
in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate 
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

 
Based on my verification of the Company’s  books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the 
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial 
Audit, I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has during the audit period covering 
the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 (hereinafter called the ‘Audit Period’) complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-
processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the 
reporting made hereinafter: 

 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
maintained by Company for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2025 according to the 
provisions of (to the extent applicable): 

 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under. 
 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made there 

under. 
 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under. 

 
(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there 

under to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and 



External Commercial Borrowings- (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period under review)  

 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’) viz.:- 
 
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and 

Takeovers) Regulations, 2011;  
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015; 
 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period under review)  

 
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulation, 2014 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the 
Company during the Audit Period under review)  

 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of 
Non- Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 and the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and) Listing of Non-Convertible 
Securities) Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
Period under review)  

 
(f)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with 
client; 

 
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 

2009 and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2021; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period 
under review)  

 
(h)   The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 

2018; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period under review).  
 
 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and amendments made thereunder;   

 
During the period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, 
Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to following 
observation: 



 
 Company being a NBFC Company, the registration under Central Registry of 

Securitisation Asset Reconstruction and Security Interest of India (CERSAI) is under 
process.  
 

I further report that compliance of applicable financial laws including Direct and Indirect Tax 
Laws by the Company has not been review in this audit since the same has been subject to 
review by the Statutory Auditors and other designated professionals.  
 

I Further report that:- 

(i) The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of 
Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes 
in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

(ii) Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and 
detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the agenda items 
before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 
 

(iii) All the decisions of the Board and Committees thereof were carried through with 
requisite majority. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in place in the Company which 
is commensurate with the size and operations to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines.  
This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. 

 
 

                                                                                                                                       Ajai Kumar  
   UDIN: A021637G000557744                                                         (Practising Company Secretary) 

Date: 06.06.2025                                                                                                    M. No.: 21637 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                                       CP No. 8140 

   Peer Review Certificate: 2716/2022 



   AJAI KUMAR & ASSOCIATES 
   Company Secretaries 
   123A, A-5, Paschim Vihar, Delhi -110063.  

                       PH. No –011- 49854846, Email Id – akp14122006@gmail.com 
 
 

 
‘ANNEXURE 1’ TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT’ 
 
To 
 

The Members 
Radico Khaitan Finance Limited  
4A, 4th Floor, Masoodpur Dairy Farms, 
New Delhi – 110070. 
  
My report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 
1. Maintenance of secretarial record and devise proper systems to ensure compliance with the 

provisions of all applicable laws and regulations is the responsibility of the management of 
the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, 
standards and procedure followed by the Company with respect to secretarial compliances. 

 
2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial Records. The verification 
was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I 
believe that the processes and practices, I followed provide a reasonable basis for my 
opinion. 

 
 
3. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the 

compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 
4. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the 
verification of procedures on test basis. 

 
Disclaimer 
 
1.         The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company 

nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of 
the company. 

2 .      I  have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of   
Accounts of the Company. 

 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                             Ajai Kumar  

(Practicing Company Secretary) 
M. No.: 21637 

                                                                                                                                                           CP No. 8140 
Date: 06.06.2025 
Place: New Delhi 



I REGISTRATION & OTHER DETAILS:

i CIN
ii Registration Date
iii Name of the Company
iv Category/Sub-category of the Company

v
Address of the Registered office
 & contact details

vi Whether listed company

vii
Name , Address & contact details of the 
Registrar  & Transfer Agent, if any.

II PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY

SL No Name & Description of  main 
products/services

NIC Code of the 
Product /service

% to total turnover 
of the company

1 NON BANKING FINANCIAL SERVICES 649 100%
2
3
4

III PARTICULARS OF HOLDING , SUBSIDIARY & ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

Sl No Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN HOLDING/
SUBSIDIARY/
ASSOCIATE

% OF 
SHARES 
HELD

APPLICABLE 
SECTION

1

KK Trades & Commercial Pvt Ltd         4A, 3rd 
Floor, Masoodpur Dairy Farms, New Delhi -
110070 U01400DL2015PLC280828 Associate 49.40% 2(6)

2

NARAH OVERSEAS PVT LIMITED ( Previous 
Name AK Trademart  Ltd ) 4A, 3rd Floor, 
Masoodpur Dairy Farms, New Delhi -110070 U51909DL2015PLC282371 Associate 49.40% 2(6)

LISTED

M/S MAS SERVICES LIMITED, T 34, SECOND FLOOR, 
OKHLA INDUSTRIAL AREA PHASE II, NEW DELHI

Pursuant to  Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the 
Company (Management & Administration ) Rules,  2014.

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be 
stated

FORM NO. MGT 9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

as on financial year ended on 31.03.2025

L74899DL1984PLC019092
10.09.1984

RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LIMITED
COMPANY LIMITED BY SHARES

4A, 4Th Floor, Masoodpur Dairy Farms, New Delhi -
110070



Category of Shareholders

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

Demat Physical Total % of Total 
Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian
a) Individual/HUF 2750833 -               2,750,833   30.56       4884094 -                  4,884,094   54.27       23.70       
b) Central Govt.or
 State Govt.
c) Bodies Corporates 1754806 378455 2,133,261   23.70       0 -                  -               -           (23.70)      
d) Bank/FI 0 0 -               -           0 0 0 -           
e) Any other 0 0 -               -           0 0 0 -           

SUB TOTAL:(A) (1) 4505639 378455 4,884,094   54.27       4884094 0 4,884,094   54.27       -           

(2) Foreign
a) NRI- Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
b) Other Individuals 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
c) Bodies Corp. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
d) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
e) Any other… 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

SUB TOTAL (A) (2) 0 0 0 -           -           

Total Shareholding of 
Promoter 
(A)= (A)(1)+(A)(2) 4505639 378455 4884094 54.27       4884094 0 4884094 54.27       -           

B. PUBLIC SHAREHOLDING

(1) Institutions
a) Mutual Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
b) Banks/FI 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
C) Cenntral govt 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
d) State Govt. 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % change during the 
year



e) Venture Capital Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
f) Insurance Companies 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
g) FIIS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
h) Foreign Venture
 Capital Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           
i) Others (specify) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 -           

-           
SUB TOTAL (B)(1): 0 0 0 -           0 0 0 -           -           

(2) Non Institutions
a) Bodies corporates 85300 210600 295900 3.29         84500 210600 295100 3.28         (0.01)        
i) Indian
ii) Overseas
b) Individuals

i) Individual shareholders 
holding  nominal share 
capital upto Rs.1 lakhs 502567 3292206 3794773 42.16       505167 3290406 3795573 42.17       0.01         
ii) Individuals shareholders 
holding nominal share 
capital in excess of Rs. 1 
lakhs 23100 0 23100 0.26         23100 0 23100 0.26         -           
c) Others (specify) 2133 0 2133 0.02         2133 0 2133 0.02         -           

SUB TOTAL (B)(2): 613100 3502806 4115906 45.73       614900 3501006 4115906 45.73       

Total Public Shareholding
(B)= (B)(1)+(B)(2) 613100 3502806 4115906 45.73       614900 3501006 4115906 45.73       

C. Shares held by Custodian 
for 
GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 5,118,739   3,881,261   9,000,000   100          5,498,994  3,501,006      9,000,000   100          



(ii) SHARE HOLDING OF PROMOTERS

Sl No. Shareholders Name % change in 
share holding 
during the 
year

NO of shares % of total 
shares
 of the 

% of shares pledged
 encumbered to total 
shares

NO of shares% of total shares
 of the company

% of shares pledged
 encumbered to total 
shares

1 KAMESH KUMAR KHAITAN 550000 6.11                   0 928455 10.32                      0 4.21                 
2 KARUNA DEVI KHAITAN 900000 10.00                 0 1571796 17.46                      0 7.46                 
3 ANIRUDH KHAITAN 850833 9.45                   0 1933843 21.49                      0 12.03               
4 KAMESH KUMAR KHAITAN HUF 450000 5.00                   0 450000 5.00                        0 -                   
5 PARVATI HOLDINGS PVT. LTD 52500 0.58                   0 0 -                          0 (0.58)                
6 JOHN PATERSON & CO. INDIA LTD 325955 3.62                   0 0 -                          0 (3.62)                
7 ANSHUMAN FINANCE LTD 580000 6.44                   0 0 -                          0 (6.44)                
8 ANIRUDH COMMERCIAL PVT LTD 250000 2.78                   0 0 -                          0 (2.78)                
9 PENGUIN LEATHER PRODUCTS PVT LTD 38010 0.42                   0 0 -                          0 (0.42)                

10 ANIRUDH HOLDINGS PVT LTD 215000 2.39                   0 0 -                          0 (2.39)                
11 JANAPRIYA KALYAN KOSH PVT LTD 671796 7.46                   0 0 -                          0 (7.46)                

Total 4884094 54.27                 0 4884094 54.27                      0

(iii) CHANGE IN PROMOTERS' SHAREHOLDING ( SPECIFY IF THERE IS NO CHANGE)

Sl. No.

No. of Shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

Date Increase / 
decrease in 
Share 
Holdings

Reason No of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

KAMESH KUMAR KHAITAN 550000 6.11                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 378455 Purchase
31.03.2024 928455 10.32               

KARUNA DEVI KHAITAN 900000 10.00                 01.04.2023
27.09.2024 671796 Purchase
31.03.2024 1571796 17.46               

ANIRUDH KHAITAN 850833 9.45                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 1083010

Cumulative Share holding during the 
year

Shareholding at the 
begginning of the year

Shareholding at the 
end of the year

Share holding at the beginning 
of the Year



31.03.2024 1933843 21.49               
KAMESH KUMAR KHAITAN HUF 450000 5.00                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year

450000
5.00                 

PARVATI HOLDINGS PVT. LTD 52500 0.58                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 52500 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

JOHN PATERSON & CO. INDIA LTD 325955 3.62                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 325955 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

ANSHUMAN FINANCE LTD 580000 6.44                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 580000 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

ANIRUDH COMMERCIAL PVT LTD 250000 2.78                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 250000 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

PENGUIN LEATHER PRODUCTS PVT LTD 38010 0.42                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 38010 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

ANIRUDH HOLDINGS PVT LTD 215000 2.39                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 215000 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

JANAPRIYA KALYAN KOSH PVT LTD 671796 7.46                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 671796 Sold
31.03.2024 0 -                   

Total 4884094 54.27                 4884094 54.27               



(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Direcors, Promoters & Holders of GDRs & ADRs)

Sl. No

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders No.of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Date Increase / 
decrease in 
Share 
Holdings

Reason No of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

1 CRB TRUSTEE LIMITED 74400 0.83                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 74400 0.83                 

2 MEGA RESOURCES LIMITED 57000 0.63                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 57000 0.63                 

3 SMITA FISCAL PRIVATE LIMITED 27400 0.30                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 27400 0.30                 

4 VRINDA JAIN 23100 0.26                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 23100 0.26                 

5 BIKRAM  VAISH 16200 0.18                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 16200 0.18                 

6 PERFECTPAC LIMITED 13000 0.14                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 13000 0.14                 

7 BLUE CHIP INDIA LIMITED 11300 0.13                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 11300 0.13                 

8 PRABHA RAJGARHIA 10700 0.12                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 10700 0.12                 

9 HGI FINANCE & LEASING P LTD. 10100 0.11                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 10100 0.11                 

10 SANJAY PANDEY 10100 0.11                   01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year 10100 0.11                 

Share holding at the beginning 
of the Year

Cumulative Share holding during the 
year



(v) Shareholding of Directors & KMP

Sl. No

For Each of the Directors & KMP No.of shares % of total 
shares of the 

company

Date Increase / 
decrease in 
Share 
Holdings

Reason No of shares % of total 
shares of the 
company

1 KAMESH KUMAR KHAITAN 550000 6.11                   01.04.2023
27.09.2024 378455 Purchase
31.03.2024 928455 10.32               

2 KARUNA DEVI KHAITAN 900000 10.00                 01.04.2023
27.09.2024 671796 Purchase
31.03.2024 1571796 17.46               

3 KRISHAN KUMAR SHARMA 0 -                     01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year

0
-                   

4 KHADERAN SINGH 0 -                     01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year

0
-                   

5 ARVIND MODI 0 -                     01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year

0
-                   

6 HITESH MIYAN 0 -                     01.04.2023

31.03.2024
No Movement 
During the year

0
-                   

Shareholding at the end of the 
year

Cumulative Share holding during the 
year



V INDEBTEDNESS

Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans

 excluding deposits
Unsecured 

Loans
Deposits Total 

Indebtedness

i) Principal Amount 5,309,573                 5,309,573          
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 5,309,573                 5,309,573          

-                              -                      
4,812,452                 4,812,452          

(4,812,452)                (4,812,452)         

497,121                     497,121             
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due

Total (i+ii+iii) 497,121                     497,121             

Net Change

i) Principal Amount

Indebtness at the beginning of the 
financial year

Indebtedness at the end of the 
financial year

Change in Indebtedness during the 
financial year

Additions
Reduction



VI REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole time director and/or Manager:

Sl.No

1 Gross salary Kamesh Kumar Khaitan ( MD )

Krishan Kumar 
Sharma ( 
Director )

521000 1345200 1,866,200    

39600 0 0 39600

0 0 0 0
2 Stock option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0

as % of profit 0 0 0 0
others (specify) 0 0 0 0

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0
Total (A) 560,600               -                   1,345,200          1,905,800    
Ceiling as per the Act

B. Remuneration to other directors:
Sl.No Total Amount

1 Independent Directors

(b) Commission

Name of the MD/WTD/ManagerParticulars of Remuneration 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) of the Income tax Act, 
1961

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

Total Amount

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income Tax. 1961.

Particulars of Remuneration

(a) Fee for attending board committee meetings

Name of the Directors



(c ) Others, please specify
Total (1)

2 Other Non Executive Directors

(b) Commission
(c ) Others, please specify.
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial Remuneration
Overall Cieling as per the Act.

C. REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD
Sl. No. Total

1 Gross Salary CEO Company 
Secretary

CFO Total

0 158733 450000 608733

0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0
2 Stock Option 0 0 0 0
3 Sweat Equity 0 0 0 0
4 Commission 0 0 0 0

as % of profit 0 0 0 0
others, specify 0 0 0 0

5 Others, please specify 0 0 0 0

Total 0 158733 450000 608733

(c ) Profits in lieu of salary 
under section 17(3) of the 
Income Tax Act, 1961

Key Managerial Personnel

(a) Fee for attending 
board committee meetings

Particulars of Remuneration

(a) Salary as per provisions 
contained in section 17(1) 
of the Income Tax Act, 
1961.
(b) Value of perquisites u/s 
17(2) of the Income Tax Act, 
1961



VII PENALTIES/PUNISHMENT/COMPPOUNDING OF OFFENCES

Type Section of 
the 
Companies 
Act

Brief 
Description

Details of 
Penalty/Punish
ment/Compoun
ding fees 
imposed

Authority 
(RD/NCLT/C
ourt)

Appeall made 
if any (give 
details)

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

 
Penalty NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Punishment NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL
Compounding NIL NIL NIL NIL NIL

A.  COMPANY

B. DIRECTORS

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT



     
 

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of  M/S RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LTD 
 

Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Standalone Financial Statements  
 
Opinion 
We have audited the Ind AS standalone financial statements of M/S RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE 
LTD (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the statement of 
Profit and Loss and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 
 
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid 
Ind AS standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of 
the state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2025, and loss and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled 
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe 
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
 
There are no key audit matters to report. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements 
 
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a 
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the 
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the 
accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets 
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 



     
 

and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease 
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 
 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted 
in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that 
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls 
system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates 
and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a 
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures 
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions 
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.  
 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
Materality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, 
makes it probable that the econimic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of  the financial 
statements may be influenced . We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning 



     
 

the scope of our audit work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial 
statments 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope 
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit.   
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were 
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key 
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public 
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should 
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 
 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 
As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central 
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in 
the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order to the extent 
applicable. 

 
As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 
 

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 
 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far 
as it appears from our examination of those books. 
 

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by 
this Report are in agreement with the books of account. 
 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting 
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014, Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken 
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors are disqualified as on 31st March, 2024 
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 
 



     
 

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the 
company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure 
B”. 

 
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 

 
 

i. The company does not have pending litigation which would impact its financial position 
except following:  

 
S. 
No. 

Name of Party Amount (Rs.) 
 

Pending at 

1. Aum Commodity Services Pvt 
Ltd 

3,22,03,047.25/- Mumbai High 
Court 

 
(Note: As per information made available to us, all the above amount has been written off 
by the company in various years.) 
 

ii. The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which 
there were any material foreseeable losses. 
 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor 
Education and Protection Fund by the company. 
 

iv. (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or loaned or 
invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entity(“intermediaries”),with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or 
entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries. 

 
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds 
(which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the company 
from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with the 
understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether 
,directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 



     
 

(c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate in 
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)or (b) 
above, contain any material misstatement. 
 

 
v  .        Since the company has not incurred loss and not declared or paid dividend during 

the year, the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable. 

 
 

          vi        Provison to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 
books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit 
trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 1, 2025, 
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 2025. 

(f)  The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is applicable 
from 1 April 2023. 

  

Based on our examination which included test checks the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant 
transactions recorded in the software.  
 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 

feature being tampered with. 
 
 
 

 
 

 

Place: Patna                    For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
       Chartered Accountants 
       Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083 
    
 
Date:  29th day of May 2025                                                     Dharmendra Kumar 
       Partner 
       M. No: 545747 
       UDIN: 25545747BMIQCN9774 
 
 
 
 
 



     
 

 
 
ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL 

AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” 

RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LTD(The Company) 

i. In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets: 
a) (A) The company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

details and situation of property ,plant and equipment. 
 
(B) The company does not have intangible assets; 

 
b) All the assets of the company were physically verified by the managemant at resonable intervals. 

We have been informed that no material discerpancies have been noticed on such physical 
verification. 

 
c) Accordng to the information & explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of 

records of the company, the title deeds of the immovable properties are held in the name of 
company. 
 

d) The company has not revalued any of its Property. Plant and Equipment(Including of use assets) 
and intangible assets during the period. 
 

e) According to the information & explanations given to us, no proceedings have been initiated during 
the period or are pending against the company as on March 31,2025 for holding any benami 
property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act. 1988 (as amended  in 2016)and rules 
made thereunder 
 

ii. a) The Company is in the business of providing loans, investment &  trading in shares and does not 
have any physical inventories. Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not 
applicable to it. 
 

  b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs.5 Crore, in aggregate, 
at any points of time during the period from banks or Financial institutions on the basis of security of 
current assets and hence Reporting under clause 3(ii)(b)of the oder is not applicable.  

 
iii. (a) Since the Company’s principal business is to give loans, investment & trading in shares. 

Accordingly, the provision of clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable to it. 
 
(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments made, 
guarantees provided, security given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances 
in the nature of loans and guarantees, provided during the year are not prejudicial to the Company’s 
interest.  
 
(c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans 
and advances in the nature of loans, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has 
been stipulated and in cases where repayment of principal and payment of interest is not received as 
stipulated, the cognizance thereof is taken by the Company in course of its periodic regulatory 
reporting.. According to the information and explanation made available to us, reasonable steps are 
taken by the Company for recovery thereof. 
 



     
 

(d) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made available to us, 
no amount is overdue for more than 90 days.  
 
(e) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of loans 
granted  which has fallen due during the year ,  has not been renewed or extended or fresh loans granted 
to settle the overdues of the existing loans given to the the same parties . 
 
(f) Based on our audit procedures, according to the information and explanation made available to us, 
the Company has not granted a loan to its associate during the year. 
 

iv. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not 
either directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the 
director is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has 
not made investments through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the 
provisions of section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are 
not applicable to the company. 
 

v. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the company being NBFC 
registed with RBI as non deposit taking company and has not accepted any deposits form public and 
consequently, the directives issued by the reserve bank of India and provision of sections 73 to 76 or 
any other provision of the companies Act and the rules framed there under are not applicable to the 
company . Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(v) of the order is not applicable to the company. 
 

vi. The Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1) 
section 148 of the Act for the business activities carried out by the Company. Accordingly, the provision 
of clause 3(vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company 

 
vii. In respect of statutory dues: 

           (a)According to the information and explanations given to us, and the information and explanation 
given to us the company has been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues  of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, service tax, sales-tax, duty of custom, duty of 
excise, value added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding at 
the year end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable. 

 
          (b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales 

Tax,  Service Tax, Custom duty, Cess and Excise Duty which have not been deposited on account 
of any dispute. 

 
viii. According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no transactions which are not 

accounted in the books of account which have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year 
in Tax Assessment of the Company. Also, there are no previously unrecorded income which has been 
now recorded in the books of account. Hence, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is 
not applicable to the Company. 

 
ix. (a)According to the information and explanations given to us, the company has not defaulted in 

repayment of loan or borrowing to a financial institution, bank, governement or due to debenture 
holders. 
 

(b)The company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other 
lender. 



     
 

 
 (c) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the company has 
utilized the money obtained by way of term loans from bank during the year for the purposes for which 
they were obtained, pending utilization towards purpose for which the same are obtained. 
 
 (d) On overall examination of the financial statements of the comapny, funds raised on short term basis 
have not been utilised for long term purposes,  
 
(e) On overall examination of the financial statements of the comapny has not taken any funds from any 
entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.  
 
(f) The company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies,  
 

x. (a)The company did not raise any money by way of  Intial Public Offer or Further Public 
Offer(including debt instruments) and term loans during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x) of the 
Order is not applicable. 
(b) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or convertible 
debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(x)(b) 
of the Order is not applicable. 
 

xi. (a) During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the company, carried out in 
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information 
and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the 
Company or on the Company. 
 
(b) We have not come across of any instance of material fraud by the company or on the company 
during the course of audit of the standalone financial statement for the year ended March 31, 2024, 
accordingly the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company. 
 
(c)As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the 
company during the year. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph (xi)(c) of the order is not 
applicable to company. 
 

xii. In our opinion and according to the information & explanations given to us, the company is not a Nidhi 
Company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the order is not applicable. 

 
xiii. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 

of the company, all transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements as required by applicable accounting standards. 
 

xiv. a)The company has an adequate  internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its 
business. 
(b) the reports of the Internal Auditor for the financial year 2024-25 were considered  by us . 
 

xv. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records 
of the company, the company has not entered into any non cash transactions with directors or persons 
connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable. 



     
 

 
xvi. a) The company is required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 

1934 and the company has obtained the required registration. 
 
b) Accordingly to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the 
record of the company, the company has  conducted  non-banking financial with a valid certificate of 
registration (CoR) form the reserve bank of India as per the reserve bank of India Act, 1934.  
 
c) In our opinion and accordingly to the information and explanations given to us, the company is not 
a core investment company, Accordingly this clause  3  (xvi)(c) of the Order is not applicable.  
 

       d) The company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions stated in         
paragraph clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the order are not applicable to the company 

 
 

xvii. The company has not incurred cash loss in the financial year. However, the company did incurred cash 
loss or loss of Rs.54,76,329/-in the immediately preceding financial year 2022-23 

 
xviii. There has been no resignation of the statutory auditor of the company during the period. 

 
xix. On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 

payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial statements and our 
Knowledge of the Board of Director and Management plans based on our  examination of the evidence 
supporting the assumptions, noting has  come to our attention, which causes us to believe  that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report including that Company is not capable of 
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date. We however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the 
audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due  within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date,will get discharged by the company as and when they 
fall due. 

 
xx. According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 135 of the Act are 

not applicable to the company. Accordingly, the provisions of paragraph (xx)(a) to (b) of the Order are 
not applicable to the Company. 
 

xxi. The reporting under clause 3(xxi) of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone 
financial statements. Accordingly, no comment in respect of the said clause has been included in the 
report. 
 

Place: Patna                    For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
       Chartered Accountants 
       Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083 
  
 
  
 
Date: 29th day of May 2025                                                     Dharmendra Kumar 
       Partner 
       M. No: 545747 
       UDIN: 25545747BMIQCN9774 



     
 

 
ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 
 
 

Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on other Legal & 
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members 
of Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd (The Company) on the standalone financial statements for 
the year ended March 31, 2025. 

 
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 
 
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of RADICO KHAITAN 
FINANCE LIMITED (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the 
standalone financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
 
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls 
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls 
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These 
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable 
financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, 
to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal 
financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such controls operated 
effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls 
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



     
 

 
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of standalone financial 
statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 
internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance 
with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's 
assets that could have a material effect on the standalone financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error 
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 
over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 
financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the company has, in all material aspects, an adequate financial control system over financial 
reporting and such internal control over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 
2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the company considering 
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
Place: Patna                    For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
       Chartered Accountants 
       Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083 
    
 
 
Date:  29th day of May 2025                                                     Dharmendra Kumar 
       Partner 
       M. No: 545747 
       UDIN: 25545747BMIQCN9774 
 







































             
 

    

Independent Auditor’s Report 

To the Members of M/s RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LIMITED. 
 
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements 
 
Opinion 
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of M/s RADICO KHAITAN 
FINANCE LIMITED (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding Company”) and its associates which 
comprise the consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, and the consolidated statement of Profit 
and Loss and the consolidated cash flows Statement for the year then ended, and notes to the Ind AS 
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies (hereinafter 
referred to as “the consolidated financial statements”). 
 
 In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the 
aforesaid Ind AS consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Act in the 
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, of their consolidated state of affairs of the company as at March 31, 2025, of 
consolidated loss and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended. 
 
Basis for Opinion 
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 
143(10) of the Companies act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in 
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by ICAI, and 
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion. 
 
Key Audit Matters 
There are no key audit matters to report. 
 
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated 
Financial Statements 
The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these 
Ind AS consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 that 
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance and 
consolidated cash flows of the Group including its Associates and Jointly controlled entities in 
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting 
Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Board of Directors of the companies 
included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for maintenance 
of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets 
of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 



             
 

    

effectively for ensuring accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation 
and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the 
Ind AS consolidated financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 
In preparing the Ind AS consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the Group and of its associates and jointly controlled entities to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern 
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or 
has no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group and of its associates and 
jointly controlled entities are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the Group and 
of its associates and jointly controlled entities. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Consolidated Financial Statements 
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee 
that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the 
basis of these Ind AS consolidated financial statements. 
 
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:  
 
• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  
 
• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Companies Act, 2013, we are 
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial 
controls system in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.  
 
• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates and related disclosures made by management.  
 
• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, 
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If 
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report 
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. 
However, future events or conditions may cause the company to cease to continue as a going concern.  



             
 

    

 
• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a 
manner that achieves fair presentation. 
 
Materality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the econimic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of  the 
financial statements may be influenced . We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in 
(i) planning the scope of our audit work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in 
the financial statments 
 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in 
internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.  
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation 
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so 
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
Other Matters 
 
 

a) We did not audit the financial statements/financial information of the following Associate 
Company, whose share of net loss pertaining to the Parent Company included in the 
consolidated financial statements is Rs. (11,712.68)/-   for the year ended on 31st March, 2025 
as follows: - 
 

 

S. No. Name of the Associate Companies incorporated in 
India 

Parent Company’s  
Share of Net 
Profit/(Loss)             

(Rs. in hundreds) 
. Narah Overseas Private Limited (49.4% share of the 

Holding Company M/s Radico Khaitan Finance 
Limited) 

(12,730.52) 
 

 KK Traders & Commercial Private Limited (49.4% 
share of the Holding Company M/s Radico Khaitan 
Finance Limited 

              1,017.84  

 Grand Total (11,712.68) 



             
 

    

 
b) The financial statements/financial information of associate stated at A (i) above, have been 

audited by other auditor whose reports have been furnished to us by the Management and our 
opinion on the consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosure included in respect of that associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and 
(11) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate is based solely on 
the reports of other auditor. 
 

c) Our opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements, and our report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to 
our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the financial statements 
and other financial information certified and furnished to us by the Management. 

 
 
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 
 

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that: 
 
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid Ind AS 
consolidated financial statements. 

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 
aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors. 

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, and the 
Consolidated Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the relevant 
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the Ind AS consolidated financial 
statements. 

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS consolidated financial statements comply with the 
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act. 
 

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company 
as on 31st March, 2025. 
 

(f)  taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and the reports of the 
statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, associate companies and jointly controlled 
companies incorporated in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, its associate 
companies and jointly controlled companies incorporated in India is disqualified as on 31st 
March, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

(g) With respect to the adequacy of internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Group 
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure A. 

 



             
 

    

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditor’s) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given to us: 
i. The Group does not have pending litigation which would impact its financial position 

except following:  

S. 
No. 

Name of Party Amount Pending at 

1. Aum Commodity Services Pvt 
Ltd 

3,22,03,047.25 Mumbai High 
Court 

 
(Note: As per information made available to us, all the above amount has been written 
off by the company in various years.) 
 
 

ii.  The Group and its associates did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts. 
 

iii. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its associate 
companies incorporated in India.  
 

iv. (a)The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been advanced or 
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources 
or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person or entity, including foreign 
entity(“intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 
company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on 
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 
funds (which are material either individually or in aggregate) have been received by the 
company from any person or entity, including foreign entity (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding , whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, 
whether ,directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in 
any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries. 

 
(c)Based on the audit procedures that have been considered reasonable and appropriate 
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that 
the representations under sub-clause(i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided under (a)or 
(b) above, contain any material misstatement. 



             
 

    

            (v)      Since the company has incurred loss and not declared or paid dividend during the        
year, the provisions of section 123 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable. 

 
 
            (vi)  Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining 

books of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording 
audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to the Company with effect from April 
1, 2025, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025. 

(f)  The reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is 
applicable from 1 April 2023. 

  

Based on our examination which included test checks the company has used an 
accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for 
all relevant transactions recorded in the software.  
 
Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail 
feature being tampered with. 

 
 

 
 
Place: Patna                 For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
                Chartered Accountants 
                 Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083
      
 
 
 
 
Date: the 29th day of May 2025                                             Dharmendra Kumar 
       Partner 
       M. No: 545747 
       UDIN: 25545747BMIQCM1046 
                                                            
                                                            
 
  
 

 

 



             
 

    

ANNEXURE A REFERRED TO IN 1 UNDER THE HEADING “REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL 

AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS” 

RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LTD(The Company) 

 
 
 

I. Thare has been no any qualifications or adverse remarks in the audit reports issued by the respective 
auditors of companies included in consolidated financial statement Accordingly, no comment in 
respect of the said clause has been included in the report. (clause 3(xxi) of the Order,2020) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Place: Patna                    For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
       Chartered Accountants 
       Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083 
 
 
 
      
 
Date:  29th day of May 2025                                                      Dharmendra Kumar 
       Partner 
       M. No: 545747 
                         UDIN: 25545747BMIQCM1046 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



             
 

    

ANNEXURE B TO THE AUDITORS’ REPORT 
 

Referred to in clause (f) of paragraph 2 under the heading “Report on other Legal & 
Regulatory Requirements” of the Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the 
members of Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd (The Company) on the standalone financial 
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025. 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of 
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) 
In our conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Financial Statements of the Company as of and for 
the year ended on March, 31 2025, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial 
reporting of RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LIMITED (“the Parent Company”) and while its 
associate company namely Narah Overseas Private Limited and KK Traders and Commercial Private 
Limited have been audited by other auditor, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 
The respective Board of Directors of the parent Company and its associates are responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control over financial 
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively 
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and 
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Auditors’ Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on 
Auditing, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with 
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting were established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects. 
 
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal 
financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and 
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting. 



             
 

    

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
 
 A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures 
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the 
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that 
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of consolidated financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the 
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the 
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to 
error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial 
controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control 
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate. 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the parent company and its associates have, in all material aspects, an adequate financial 
control system over financial reporting and such internal control over financial reporting were operating 
effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria 
established by the company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India. 
 
 
Place: Patna                   For RAKCHAMPS & CO LLP 
       Chartered Accountants 
       Firm Reg. No: 131094W/W100083
     
 
 
 
Date: 29th day of May 2025                                                    Dharmendra Kumar 
                 Partner 
 
                                                                                                       M. No: 545747 
                 UDIN: 25545747BMIQCM1046                
                                            
                                                            







































   
Form No. MGT-12 

BALLOT / POLLING PAPER 

 
[Pursuant to section 109(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 21(1) (c) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Company :RADICO KHAITAN FINANCE LIMITED  

Registered Office: PLOT NO.-4A, 4TH FLOOR, DAIRY FARM MASOODPUR NEW DELHI – 110070 
CIN:L74899DL1984PLC019092 

BALLOT PAPER 

Sl.No. Particulars Details 

1. 
Name of the first named Shareholder  
(In Block Letters) 

 

2. Postal address 
 
 
 

3. 
Registered Folio No./ *Client ID No. 
(*applicable to investors holding shares in 
Dematerialized form) 

 

4. Class of Share Equity Shares 

I hereby exercise my vote in respect of Ordinary Resolutions enumerated below by recording my assent or dissent to the said 
resolutions in the following manner: 

No. Item No. 
No. of Shares # 

held by me 
I assent to the 
Resolution $ 

I dissent from 
the resolution 

1. 
Ordinary Resolution for Adoption of Financial Statement of Accounts 
for the year ended on 31stMarch, 2025.    

2. 
Ordinary Resolution to consider and adopt the Consolidated 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31st, 2025  

   

3 
To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Karuna Devi Khaitan 
(DIN: 00755814), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

4. 
To Appoint Ms. RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountant as Statutory Auditor of the Company.    

5. 
Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Modi ( Din No. 08185190) as 
Independent Director     

6. 
Re-appointment of Mr. Khaderan Singh ( Din No. 
07900796) as Independent Director    

7. 
Appointment of M/S. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors    

Note :  
# Specify the total no of shares held by member in the Company in each respective column.  
$  Provide the number of share voting in favour of the resolution. 
@  Provide the number of share to vote against the resolution.  
*  Any other mark will not be considered for voting & such vote shall treated as canceled or shall not be counted. 
Place: 
Date :                                                                                        

Signature of the shareholder*) 
(*as per Company records) 



   
 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP 

Annual General Meeting, Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. at PT. Gyani Ram Farm 
House C/o Mr. Bijender Sharma, Advocate, Near Canara Bank, Main Road Asola, Fatehpur Beri, 

New Delhi- 110074: 

Name of the Shareholder  
Address  
Registered Folio/ DP ID & 
Client ID 

 

No of Shares held  
Name of the Proxy / 
AuthorisedRepresentative, 
if any 

 

 
I / We hereby record my / our presence at the ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company to be 
held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. at PT. Gyani Ram Farm House C/o Mr. 

Bijender Sharma, Advocate, Near Canara Bank, Main Road Asola, Fatehpur Beri, New Delhi- 110074. 

 

     Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/ Authorised 
Representative 

Note: The Member/Proxy must bring this Attendance Slip to the Meeting, duly completed and 
signed, and hand over the same at the venue entrance. 

 

 



   
(ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE FOR THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF THE COMPANY TO BE HELD ON 
30TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2025) 

Name & Registered Address of Sole/First named Member: 

Joint Holders Name (If any): 

Folio No. / DP ID & Client ID:   

No. of Equity Shares Held:  

Dear Shareholder, 

Subject: Process and manner for availing E-voting facility: 

Pursuant to Provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013, Rule 20 of the Companies 
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended by the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015 and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide E-voting facility to the 
members to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions proposed to be considered at the ANNUAL  
GENERAL MEETING (AGM) to be held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. at PT. Gyani 
Ram Farm House C/o Mr. Bijender Sharma, Advocate, Near Canara Bank, Main Road Asola, Fatehpur 

Beri, New Delhi- 110074 and at any adjournment thereof.  

The Company has engaged the services of NSDL to provide the e-voting facility. The e-voting facility is 
available at the link www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

The Electronic Voting Particulars are set out below: 

EVEN(Electronic Voting Even Number) User ID PAN / Sequence No. 

136765   

The E-voting facility will be available during the following voting period: 

Remote e-Voting Start On Remote e-Voting End On 

27th September, 2025 at 9:00 A.M.(IST) 29th September, 2025 at 5:00 P.M.(IST) 

 
          By Order of the Board  

                                                                                                                           For Radico Khaitan Finance Ltd  
 

 
      Krishan Kumar Sharma  
                        Director  

Place:  New Delhi                      Din No. 00856406 
Date: 04.09.25 

Encl: AGM Notice / Attendance Slip / Proxy Form / Annual Report  



   
FORM NO. MGT-11 

Proxy Form 
[Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management 
and Administration) Rules, 2014] 
Name of the Member(s)  
Registered Address  

E-mail ID  
Folio No. / *DP-ID & Client  
*Applicable for Investors holding shares in electronic form. 
I / We, being the member (s) of ……………………. shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint: 
1. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
Or falling him 
2. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
Or falling him 
3. Name: Address: 

E-mail Id: Signature: 
as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General 
Meeting of the Company, to be held on Tuesday, 30th September, 2025 at 02:00 P.M. at PT. Gyani 
Ram Farm House C/o Mr. Bijender Sharma, Advocate, Near Canara Bank, Main Road Asola, Fatehpur 
Beri, New Delhi- 110074, and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as is/are 
indicated below: 
** I/We wish my/our above Proxy to vote in the manner as indicated in the box below:- 
Ordinary Business: 
Item No. Resolution(s)  For Against 

1. 
Ordinary Resolution for Adoption of Financial Statement of Accounts 
for the year ended on 31stMarch, 2025.    

2. 
Ordinary Resolution to consider and adopt the Consolidated 
Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial 
year ended on March 31st, 2025  

   

3 
To appoint a Director in place of Mrs. Karuna Devi Khaitan 
(DIN: 00755814), who retires by rotation and being eligible, 
offers himself for re-appointment. 

   

4. 
To Appoint Ms. RAK Champs & Co. LLP, Chartered 
Accountant as Statutory Auditor of the Company.    

5. 
Re-appointment of Mr. Arvind Modi ( Din No. 08185190) as 
Independent Director     

6. 
Re-appointment of Mr. Khaderan Singh ( Din No. 
07900796) as Independent Director    

7. 
Appointment of M/S. Ajai Kumar & Associates, Practicing Company 
Secretaries as the Secretarial Auditors    

 
Signed this ………… day of …………. 2025. 
 
 
--------------------------------------  -----------------------------------------  
Signature of Shareholder        Signature of Proxy holder(s): 

Affix Re.1 
Revenue 
Stamp 



   
Notes: 
1. This form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company. 
2. This form of Proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 

of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the meeting. 
3. A proxy need not be a member of the Company. 
4. A person can act as proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty and holding in the aggregate not more 

than 10% of the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights. A member holding more than 10% of 
the total share capital of the Company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy and such 
person shall not act as a proxy for any other person or shareholder. 

5. **This is only optional. Please put a ‘x’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. 
If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to 
vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate. 

6. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so wishes. 
7. In the case of joint holders, the signature of any one holder will be sufficient, but names of all the joint holders 

should be stated.  
 
 
 
 

 


